
Lead Member for Children's and Young People's 
Services Briefing 
Dear Member,

You are invited to attend the meeting of the Lead Member for Children's and Young 
People's Services Briefing to be held as follows for the transaction of the business 
indicated.
Miranda Carruthers-Watt 
Proper Officer

DATE: Thursday, 6 December 2018

TIME: 12.30 pm

VENUE: 2nd Floor, Unity House, Civic Centre, Swinton

In accordance with ‘The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 
2014,’ the press and public have the right to film, video, photograph or record 
this meeting. 

AGENDA

1  Apologies for Absence 

2  Declarations of Interest 

3  Minutes of the previous meeting - 29th November 2018 

4  Part one - Open to the Public - 

4a Local Authority Day Nurseries consultation (Pages 1 - 16)

5  Exclusion of the Public 

6  Items for Decision - Part Two- Closed to the Public  NO ITEMS 

Contact Officer: Tel No: 0161 793 2811
Helen.Oldland E-Mail: Helen.Oldland@salford.gov.uk

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



1

Briefing Item ITEM NO.

FROM THE STRATEGIC DIRECTOR FOR PEOPLE 

TO

TO THE LEAD MEMBER FOR CHILDREN’S AND YOUNG PEOPLE’S SERVICES

ON 

6 December 2018

TITLE: 
Briefing report following approval to go out to competition for the five

Local Authority Day Nurseries following the 30 working day consultation outcome

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:

Following approval from Procurement Board on the 28th November 2018 this report is 
a briefing update for the Lead Member for Children’s and Young Peoples Services.  

This report details the outcome of a 30 working day stakeholder consultation that 
began on the 7th September 2018 and ended on the 18th October 2018.

The consultation was to seek a school/education based solution to maximise the 
LA Day Nursery provision in the City (this would mean that the LA Day Nurseries 
would no longer be operated and managed by the council and that a third party 
provider would take over their management and operation).

This consultation was agreed following the outcome of the 90 day public consultation 
that took place between the 26th March 2018 and the 25th June 2018 that was 
seeking views on finding a more cost effective way to deliver the local authority 
nurseries and was not about ceasing the services that the nurseries provide.

Following the consultation we received expressions of interest from two providers, a 
local primary school and a local multi academy trust both currently offering provision 
in Salford 

The local primary school expressed an interest in expanding the schools existing 
nursery class for 3 and 4 year olds and to also include the offer of provision for 2 year 
olds using one of the Nursery sites. The offer on the provision would be on a term-
time only basis in line with the normal school holiday pattern.

The Multi Academy Trust expressed an interest in taking on the running of all
5 Local Authority Day Nurseries. Offering the full range of provision, full day care for 
0 - 5 year olds, all year round.

Both these options will be subject to procurement regulations and will have to be 

Page 1

Agenda Item 4a



2

tendered.

Procurement Board approved the granting of authority for all five of the Local 
Authority Day Nurseries to be procured in accordance with the Council’s Contractual 
Standing Orders through an open tender and to now undertake a tendering process 
inviting the market to participate to express their interest in this opportunity following 
the public consultation.

It is recommended that the tender specification is for 0-5 year old provision, offering 
full day care (8:00am until 6:00pm at a minimum) and operates all year round (51 
weeks a year)

Recommendation 

That the Lead Member for Lead Member for Children’s and Young Peoples Services 
consider the contents of this report following approval from Procurement Board to go 
out to tender the five Local Authority Day Nurseries. 

Early Education and Childcare Places in Salford

Across the City we have a total of 4234 early education and childcare places for 0-5 
year olds in Early Years settings in the Private, Voluntary and Independent sector 
with only 327 places being offered in the Local Authority Nurseries. In addition to this 
we also have 2639 places available for 3 and 4 year olds in School Nurseries. 
Overall the Local Authority Nurseries only provide 4.7% of early education and 
childcare places across the City. 

2 Year Old Funding 

In the autumn term we placed 1190 eligible 2 year old funded children in Early Years 
settings in the Private, Voluntary and Independent sector (including Child-minders) 
with only 75 eligible 2 year old funded children placed in the Local Authority 
Nurseries. 

3 and 4 Year Old Funding 

We currently have 1671 3 and 4 year old children accessing their free entitlement in 
Early Years settings in the Private, Voluntary and Independent sector and a further 
2425 accessing their entitlement in School Nurseries with only 35 accessing their 
entitlement in the Local Authority Nurseries.

Dedicated Schools Grant (dsg)

Dedicated Schools Grant is made up of three blocks: Early Years block, High Needs 
block and Schools block. The latter provides schools with their budgets directly. Early 
years and High needs block have grant conditions attached to their spend. 

DSG overspend in Early Years block from 18/19 is a new area of budget pressure. 
Early years block underspent in 17/18 by £427K however, due to changes in the 

Page 2



3

Early Years funding formula to be implemented in April 17, and previous budget 
decisions to switch core budget to early years DSG this will not be the case going 
forward. 
The new formula will limit the 3 and 4 year old funding that can be centrally retained 
by the LA and instead the funding will be distributed to all early years’ providers. 
By 18/19 the anticipated pressure on the early years block will be £1.75 million 
overspend. This pressure is projected to be recurrent.

DSG overspend in Early Years block from 18/19 is a new area of budget pressure.

The implementation of the Early Years National Funding Formula in 2017/18 required 
93% of funding to be devolved to nurseries, with an increase to 95% from 18/19 
onwards. This change along with previous budget decisions to switch core budget to 
early years DSG will place pressure on the Early Years central budget, with a 
projected in year overspend in 2018/19 of £1.7m. This level of overspend is projected 
to be recurrent in future years.

Whilst there is currently a surplus to be carried forward it is anticipated that any 
surplus will be clawed back when the figures are adjusted to take account of the 
January 2018 census.

KEY DECISION:

NO

1. Background

1.1 The overspend in the Early Years Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) projected 
for 18/19 is £1.75million.

1.2 This is projected to be recurrent for future years. 

1.3 This pressure has come about due to two reasons;  a new Early Years 
Funding formula was implemented by DFE in April 17 which limits the amount 
of 3 and 4 year old funding which the LA can retain and also budget decisions 
taken in previous years changes to utilise DSG instead of core funding for 
identified spend.

1.4 School readiness is a priority in the city and across Greater Manchester so 
achieving this funding shortfall is challenging.  

1.5 A Cabinet Briefing Report put forward on the 12th December 2017 provided 5 
options on proposals to meet the funding shortfall with the least limited impact 
and recommended prioritising funding on early intervention and prevention. 

1.6 One of these options included the option to tender the Local Authority 
Nurseries to the Private, Voluntary or Independent Sector.

Page 3



4

1.7 It was agreed at a Cabinet Briefing to commence a 90 day consultation 
process following public engagement it was agreed to consult on a more cost 
effective way to deliver the local authority nurseries.

2. LA Day Nursery Context

2.1 The Local Authority Day Nurseries are registered for 327 childcare places.

2.2 The Council Nurseries are currently supporting 2 Year old Funding  children 
(19.07%), 3 and 4 year old funding  children (39.12%). 19.56% of children 
have SEND.

2.3 Currently the subsidy for the Local Authority Day Nurseries is £1,455, 485. 

2.4 In addition to the Council’s provision, the day care market is a mix of private, 
voluntary and independent sector providers. The private sector comprises of 
some small and large chains of day nursery provision, such as, Fledglings 
Childcare and Kids Planet.

2.5 Local Authority Budget Information:

Income (1,566,483.00)

Staff Costs   2,306,736.00 

 Premises & running costs         715,232.00 

 

DSG Net Budget   1,455,485.00 

Detail per Nursery 

 Belvedere Nursery        (Central Locality)      252,756.00 

 Little Hulton Nursery           (West Locality)      275,246.00 

 Winton Nursery          (South Locality)      222,512.00 

 Barton Moss Nursery       (South Locality)      293,911.00 

 Higher Broughton Nursery (Central East Locality)      245,421.00 

Page 4



5

2.6 Local Authority Day Nurseries overview as of the 29.10.2018 

LA Nursery Ofsted Grade Registered 
Places

(Full time 
equivalent)

Children 
on Roll

2 YOF

Places

3&4 YOF

Places

Universal 
Hrs

3 & 4

Places

Extended

Hrs

SEN

Places

Current 
Occupancy 

(autumn 
tem)

%

Barton Moss Outstanding 60 46 6 6 4 44.7

Belvedere Outstanding 64 52 27 4 1 39.9

Little Hulton Outstanding 75 81 24 9 4 59.5

Higher Broughton Outstanding 62 57 11 9 4 53.1

Winton Outstanding 60 50 7 5 3 36.8

(Data Source Connect, Census & Nursery Managers)

3. Consultation Process

3.1 A 30 working day public consultation began on the 7th September 2018 and 
ended on the 18th October 2018.

3.2 The consultation was to seek a school/education based solution to 
maximise the LA Day Nursery provision in the City (this would mean that 
the LA Day Nurseries would no longer be operated and managed by the 
council and that a third party provider would take over their management and 
operation).

3.3 Proposals, views, ideas and comments were welcomed from all parties 
(parents, employees, schools, and the private, voluntary and independent 
sector) to run the nurseries more cost effectively. 

3.4 Legal advice has been sought throughout the preparation and the throughout 
the process of the consultation, ensuring the process was robust and fair. 

4. Consultation Methodology 

4.1 The existing Local Authority Consultation webpage was updated detailing the 
new consultation proposals and provided new and existing information to allow 
members of the public, existing users of the Local Authority Nurseries, 
stakeholders and workforce to engage with the consultation process
https://www.salford.gov.uk/children-and-families/parents-and-
childcare/childcare/local-authority-nurseries/proposals-for-local-authority-
nurseries/ 

Page 5

https://www.salford.gov.uk/children-and-families/parents-and-childcare/childcare/local-authority-nurseries/proposals-for-local-authority-nurseries/
https://www.salford.gov.uk/children-and-families/parents-and-childcare/childcare/local-authority-nurseries/proposals-for-local-authority-nurseries/
https://www.salford.gov.uk/children-and-families/parents-and-childcare/childcare/local-authority-nurseries/proposals-for-local-authority-nurseries/


6

4.2 The dedicated email account continued to be used to enable stakeholders, the 
public, existing service users and employees direct contact into the 
consultation. This email account was overseen by the Head of Service and 
responses were provided accordingly through frequently asked questions.

4.3 An online questionnaire was developed, to enable the following groups of 
stakeholders to respond to the current proposal. 

 Service users (parents/carers/families) 
 Stakeholders/Partners (professional, private, voluntary) and 

commissioned services provided. 
 Public
 Workforce

4.4 Paper copies of the questionnaire could be requested through the Local 
Authority Day Nursery Managers and laptops were made available in the LA 
Day Nurseries for stakeholders to use.  

4.5 Respondents were asked:

 If they agreed with the consultation proposal: To seek a 
school/education based solution to maximise the LA Day Nursery 
provision in the City.

 If they thought there would be any benefits to the proposal to seek a 
school/education based solution to maximise the LA Day Nursery 
provision in the City.

 If they thought there would be any negative impacts to the proposal to 
seek a school/education based solution to maximise the LA Day 
Nursery provision in the City.

 How will the proposed changes affect them.
 How they could be supported through the changes if the proposals are 

approved.
 Their current use of the Local Authority Nurseries
 Respondents protected characteristics such as age, gender, disability 

etc. 
 Spaces for additional comments were made available throughout the 

consultation questionnaire.

4.6 Posters advertising the consultation and public events were displayed in the 
LA Day Nurseries, Children’s Centres and Gateways.

4.7 The details of the consultation and the public events were also made available 
on Salford City Council Facebook page and Twitter feed throughout the 30 
working day consultation period. 

4.8 Prior to the consultation starting, employees and trade unions were briefed on 
the consultation proposal, via face to face meetings.

4.9 A letter was sent out to all service users (parents and carers) at the start of the 
consultation outlining the details of the consultation. 

Page 6



7

 
4.10 Five public consultation meetings were held at the five Local Authority Day 

Nurseries. The purpose of the meetings were to engage with as many people 
as possible to gather their views, opinions and ideas to feed into the 
consultation.

4.11 The Strategic Director of People, the Assistant Director of Education and a 
Lead Officer attended a Campaign Group meeting to provide details of the 
consultation proposal. 

4.12 The dates of the public meetings were as follows:

Meeting Date Time Venue
Campaign Meeting 5th September 2018 6:30pm - 7:30pm Salford Civic Centre
Public Meeting 11th September 2018 6:00pm - 7:30pm Barton Moss
Public Meeting 13th September 2018 6:00pm - 7:30pm Winton
Public Meeting 18th September 2018 6:00pm - 7:30pm Belvedere 
Public Meeting 20th September 2018 6:00pm - 7:30pm Little Hulton
Public Meeting/
Campaign Meeting 

26th September 2018 6:00pm - 7:30pm Higher Broughton

4.13 The following specific consultation activities were also undertaken:

 Public meetings.
 Detailed information made available on the Local Authority Day Nursery 

webpage including details about the consultation, funding information, 
financial information, and individual LA Day Nursery information.

 Verbal contact to the Department for Education to further discuss the 
proposal.

 Meetings with school/education establishments.
 Meetings with nursery employees.
 Engagement with the Campaign Group.
 Engagement with Trade Unions.

5. Consultation Responses

Online Questionnaire 

5.1 At the end of the consultation period, 13 online responses had been received. 

5.2 The responses came from the following categories;

 Parent or Guardian of a child aged 0 – 5 people/ 38%.
 Other (please specify below) – 5 people/ 38%:

o Nursery Staff – 1.
o Foster carer – 1.
o member of staff – 1.
o employee at LA nursery – 1.

Page 7



8

o not specified – 1.
 Friend or relative of a nursery user – 2 people/ 16%.
 Member of the general public, – 1 person/ 8%.

5.3 Out of the 13 online responses received, 46% (6 people) agreed with the 
consultation proposal ‘to seek a school/ education based solution to 
maximise the LA day nursery provision in the city’ and 54% (7 people) 
disagreed with the proposal. 

5.4 10 of the respondents gave additional comments in response to the 
consultation proposal.

5.5 The following themed comments to the consultation proposal were the 
following;

Themed Comments
It is not clear how the proposal will be delivered.
Concerned that the proposal may not encompass babies. Want to ensure 
that the provision includes 0 -2 years. 
Concerned that possibly the solution would only be in term time which will 
exclude working parents.
No changes to opening times, hours, available places, etc.
Do not want the Nurseries to be categorised for just for non-working poorer 
parents
Concerned the mix of the children who attend the Nurseries would be lost
Preference for school provision rather than education provider. Then by 
default (unless academy) will still an element of LA input, ensuring quality 
provision.
Nurseries should remain under the Local Authority to maintain high 
standards of care and highly skilled experienced staff.
This solution shouldn’t include Academies, as this would be privatisation. 
The nurseries and staff would then be subject to market forces and 
inevitably, this will lead to detrimental terms and conditions (for newly 
recruited staff). 
Nurseries should remain a public service.
Believe the funding for the Nurseries should be made available from central 
government.

5.6 The Campaign Group submitted the following response to the consultation 
proposal and stated that they would only agree to the consultation if the 
following applied; 

 The nurseries must remain in the public sector. The schools they are 
managed by must therefore not be academies or free schools.

 The nurseries must be able to continue to offer provision from 0-4 years 
old.

 Staffing ratios, structures, access to training and terms and conditions 
must not be altered.

 There should be no reduction in support for children with additional 
needs.

Page 8



9

 The nurseries should remain at their current locations.
 The nurseries must maintain their existing opening hours and not move 

to term-time only.
 The City Council must underwrite any transfer of the nurseries into 

school management and agree up front to move any nursery back into 
Council management, should the viability of the nursery or its services 
be threatened.

 If the outcome of this consultation is not acceptable to staff and 
parents, organised through our campaign, the City Council should 
commit to at least a further twelve month funding to August 2020.

 That as long as the nurseries do not have an acceptable long-term 
solution, we expect Salford politicians to support the campaign in 
demanding additional government funding.

 That certainty on the future of the nurseries until at least August 2020 
must be given by the final Full Council meeting of 2018.

5.7 31% (4 people) stated that there would be benefits to the proposal to seek a 
school/ education based solution to maximise the LA day nursery provision in 
the city and 69% (9 people) stated there would be no benefits to the proposal.

5.8 7 respondents included additional comments to their response which included 
some benefits and concerns;

Comments
As a working parent I need childcare for 51 weeks of the year from 8am until 
6pm. Need provision to enable parents to work.
What will happen to the high skilled staff from the local authority nurseries.
Trying to push up adult: child ratios to cut costs which will be detrimental to the 
children.
Closer links with local schools.
Schools already have budget issues and a different remit to LA nurseries.
Concerned that schools will not be in a position to accept babies as they 
would have to re-register with OFSTED in order to do so.
A school based proposal is a preferred option to being privatised.
If the option is closure, then yes, a school-based solution would be a benefit.

5.9 100% (13 people) think there will be a negative impact to the consultation 
proposal.

5.10 12 respondents offered additional comments in relation to the above question 
and these included; 

Comments
Concerned that children may only access the nursery of the school they 
want to go to.
Concerned that the proposal may not encompass babies. Want to ensure 
that the provision includes 0 -2 years.
Concerned that possibly the solution would only be in term time which will 
exclude working parents. 

Page 9



10

Provision needs to offer full day care 51 weeks of the year.
School hours for 38 weeks of the year do not always meet the demands of 
working parent/ carers.
Concerned about the quality and the outstanding provision that is currently 
being offered from the Nurseries. 
Do neighbouring schools have capacity to absorb.
Loss of skilled staff if salaries are lowered.
Concerned about schools being able to retain the highly qualified staff.

5.12 When asked how the proposed changes would affect service users, 13 
responses were received. 

5.13 The following themes were received in response to this question;

Themed Comments
Don’t know what the proposed changes are yet.
The changes have not been described yet.
I do not have a model to look at so it is hard to say how the proposed 
changes.
Impossible to comment on as we have no details.
Unable to answer at present not knowing how the staffing structure will be.
Concerns re: change in conditions, i.e. wage, holidays, pensions.
As a foster carer for Salford city council, the children placed with me have 
needs that require the care of well trained, caring staff.
Concerns regarding parents working different shift patterns and provision 
not being available. 
Concerns that high standards of care and quality of staff will be lost.
Concerns about finding alternative childcare where parents feel confident 
leaving their child.
Nursery operates 51 weeks of the year for 50hrs a week – there may be a 
difference in opening times/ closing times, age groups, staffing structures, 
etc. 
If 0-2yr provision was not offered, then a large number of children and 
families will be affected as they would need to seek alternative childcare.
May not have access to all year round childcare provision.
The lack of continuity in nursery is already affecting the children.
Hopeful that the transition would mean little or no detrimental effects.
As an employee and union member I could no longer have a job which then 
this would affect my family for example will need to apply for benefits, free 
school meals, help towards buying their uniforms and may lose my house 
and car as wouldn’t be able to afford to pay for them. This would have a 
substantial impact on my financial and mental well-being.

5.14 13 comments were received from 13 respondents when asked how service 
users could be supported through the changes.

5.15 The responses included the following themes;

Theme Comments
Not sure – don’t know what will be offered to parents yet.

Page 10



11

Don’t know as the changes have not yet been described.
Unknown. 
Unsure what the final outcome of the consultation will be or what the offer/ 
model will look like. Therefore, can’t comment at this time on what support 
may be needed.
Unable to answer given that our service needs change regularly due to the 
children we care for.

Give staff same conditions, wages, pensions, etc.
Finding me an outstanding nursery local to me.
Ensure that we can still access OUTSTANDING childcare within the same 
distance from our homes.
Support with other options.
More timely decisions. 
A decision before the end of 2018.
To ensure that as little as possible is changed at the nursery, and all of the 
excellent staff are retained. 
Ensure that the nurseries continue to run as normal.
Have more senior leadership support, have support with interview 
techniques, and to find out what jobs are available within the council.

Public Meetings 

5.4 Alongside and in parallel to the 30 working day stakeholders consultation, 
there were a series of public consultation meetings –one to be held at each of 
the five affected day nurseries 

Local Authority Nursery Date 
Barton Moss 11th September 2018
Winton 13th September 2018
Belvedere 18th September 2018
Little Hulton 20th September 2018
Higher Broughton 26th September 2018

5.5 17 people attended the Public Meetings.

5.6 The attendance for each Local Authority Nursery was the following;

Local Authority Nursery Date Attendance 
Barton Moss 11th September 2018 0
Winton 13th September 2018 0
Belvedere 18th September 2018 4
Little Hulton 20th September 2018 4
Higher Broughton 26th September 2018 9

5.7 Based upon the discussion held and questions asked/ answers given at these 
three public meetings, the following themes have been identified:

Page 11



12

 what/ where/ how is 0-2 year old provision going to be provided and 
protected?

 whoever the new providers are they need to engage with and be more 
inclusive with their local communities

 impact on Special Educational Needs and Disabilities (SEND) children 
re: if/ when LA day nurseries close, where will SEND children find 
alternative provision?

 are schools actually able/ want to take-on day nursery provision? Is it 
sustainable for them? re: resources, space, etc. Do schools know what 
they are potentially taking-on? (including 2 Ofsted inspections?)

 what is the LA’s long-term plan, say in 5 years’ time?
 what is the LA’s back-up plan if a third party provider fails?
 if provided in school settings, will opening hours be extended to meet 

many parent’s needs?
 are nursery-wide services going to be re-negotiated individually, i.e. 

Citywide?
 will there remain flexibility for children to attend any of the nurseries 

rather than just the nearest? 
 how will other services be procured by a third party provider, e.g. 

Education Psychologist, Speech and Language Team, etc.?
 what about new providers pay scales for current different roles, i.e. 

Teaching Assistant versus Early Years Educator? Will all roles be 
replicated?

 the impact on the current work force has not yet been considered, i.e. 
pensions.

School/Education Establishment Meetings 

5.8 A series of individual meetings were held with three potential school/education 
establishments.

Local Authority Day Nursery Campaign 

5.9 Engagement with the Local Authority Day Nursery Campaign group continued 
throughout the 30 working day consultation period. Membership includes the 
trade unions, parents, employees, and cabinet members. 

5.10 The campaigns main objective is to engage with Ministers from Central 
Government in order to secure additional funding to keep the Local Authorities 
open under Local Authority control.  

5.11 An email response from submitted from this group to the consultation 
proposal; which included a list of ‘demands’ and stated that they would only 
agree to the consultation if the following applied; 

 The nurseries must remain in the public sector. The schools they are 
managed by must therefore not be academies or free schools.

 The nurseries must be able to continue to offer provision from 0-4 years 
old.

Page 12



13

 Staffing ratios, structures, access to training and terms and conditions 
must not be altered.

 There should be no reduction in support for children with additional 
needs.

 The nurseries should remain at their current locations.
 The nurseries must maintain their existing opening hours and not move 

to term-time only.
 The City Council must underwrite any transfer of the nurseries into 

school management and agree up front to move any nursery back into 
Council management, should the viability of the nursery or its services 
be threatened.

 If the outcome of this consultation is not acceptable to staff and 
parents, organised through our campaign, the City Council should 
commit to at least a further twelve month funding to August 2020.

 That as long as the nurseries do not have an acceptable long-term 
solution, we expect Salford politicians to support the campaign in 
demanding additional government funding.

 That certainty on the future of the nurseries until at least August 2020 
must be given by the final Full Council meeting of 2018.

6. Consultation Outcomes

6.1 Two proposals were submitted as an outcome of these meetings from two 
education establishments.

6.2 One proposal came from a local primary school and one from a Multi 
Academy Trust.

Primary School

6.3 The proposal is to expand the schools existing nursery class for 3 and 4 year 
olds and to also include the offer of provision for 2 year olds at one of the 
Nursery sites.

6.4 The provision would be solely for 2, 3 and 4 year olds.

6.5 The offer on the provision would be on a term-time only basis in line with the 

normal school holiday pattern. 

6.6 The hours of operation would follow the normal school time pattern. 

Multi Academy Trust 

6.7 The proposal from the Multi Academy Trust is to take over the running of all 5 
Local Authority Day Nurseries.

Page 13



14

6.8 The intention is to run each nursery with provision as close to that currently 
available across all five settings and to build on the already outstanding 
provision.

6.9 The intention is to also look to use the capacity of the trust to provide 
extended training and opportunities for staff as well as provide other services 
to the local community where possible.

6.10 It is intended that a Governance Board will be established with responsibility 
for the overall management of the Nursery Group.

6.11 There is a commitment to working with the Local Authority, Unions and the 
nursery staff to achieve the best possible outcomes for children and families.

Recommendation 

Recommendation 

That the Lead Member for Lead Member for Children’s and Young Peoples Services 
consider the contents of this report following approval from Procurement Board to go 
out to tender the five Local Authority Day Nurseries. 

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES: 

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS:

ASSESSMENT OF RISK: 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: The Council’s Legal Team

The Council’s Legal Team has advised Council Officers involved in the consultations 
throughout. 
The legal advice is that the consultation process was balanced and fair and followed 
broad principles of good practice. The consultations took place at a time when 
proposals were at a formative stage and gave sufficient reasons for particular 
proposals to allow for intelligent consideration and response. 
The objectives of the consultations were clear. Adequate time was given for the 
consultations and captured the full range of stakeholders through appropriate 
mediums.

Appropriate general employment advice has also been given about the implications 
of any outcomes from the consultation such as the possible application of TUPE and 
other statutory provisions.

Page 14



15

The recommended option, to take on the running of all 5 Local Authority Day 
Nurseries would amount to a ‘business transfer’ in accordance with Regulation 
3(1)(a) of the Transfer of Undertakings (Protection of Employment) Regulations 
2006. (TUPE)

The purpose of the TUPE regulations is to protect employees affected by a business 
transfer.  The main objectives being to ensure:

 the contracts of employment of the employees assigned to the business, 
transfer automatically from the current employer (the transferor) to the new 
employer (transferee) on their existing terms and conditions

 both the transferor and the transferee inform and consult with their respective 
employees who might be affected by the transfer

The provisions under TUPE will apply to all ‘employees’ employed within the 
nurseries immediately before any transfer takes place.  Agency staff are unlikely to 
be regarded as employees and will therefore not be eligible to transfer.

Legal Services are committed to advising and supporting Children’s Services in 
respect of all employment related issues arising from the outcome of the consultation 
and following any subsequent procurement exercise.  Advice will include, but not be 
limited to; the application of TUPE, prospective redundancies, statutory consultations 
and any potential financial or litigation risk to the Local Authority.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Chris Mee - Strategic Finance Manager 
Ext 0434

As detailed above, there is a projected overspend in Early Years DSG of circa £1.7m 
in 18/19 which if no action is taken will be a recurrent pressure  in future years. This 
pressure has resulted from both changes to Early Years DSG funding under the new 
National Funding Formula which limits amount of 3 and 4 year old funding which the 
LA can retain for central expenditure and budget decisions taken in previous years to 
utilise DSG instead of core funding for identified eligible spend. This is not a 
sustainable position for the council, with (under current DfE guidance) any overspend 
in DSG central expenditure only being allowed to be  carried forward for a maximum 
of two years before this liability then falls on the councils core revenue budget.

The council has committed in the short term to supporting the existing LA Nurseries 
provision for the academic year 2018/19 (i.e. up to September 2019), pending the 
outcome of this consultation and the identification of a sustainable / affordable 
solution within the funding available for this provision.   

The medium/longer term financial implications for the council will need to be 
considered as part of the formal tendering process that is now proposed to be 
followed.

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Christine Flisk

Page 15



16

The public consultation is now complete and the proposals set out within this report 
are subject to Public Sector Procurement Regulations. The procurement team will 
work with Children services to undertake a compliant procurement process in line 
with PCR 2015 and contractual standing orders.
Procurement Engagement: Low/Medium/High 

HR IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Catherine Sharples, Strategic HR and OD 
Manager

The workforce and trade unions have been involved as a stakeholder in this 
consultation exercise. 

There have been a number of questions raised within the consultation about the 
workforce impact. The detail of the impact on the workforce will only be clear once 
the outcome from the consultation and any procurement exercise is clear and the 
proposed operating model of any successful education partner is known. Based on 
the options proposed, it is likely that TUPE regulations will apply. The TUPE 
regulations will mean that all ‘employees’ employed within the nurseries immediately 
before any transfer takes place will automatically transfer to the new employer. The 
contracts of employment of the employees transfer automatically from Salford City 
Council (the transferor) to the new employer (transferee) on their existing terms and 
conditions.
In line with TUPE regulations we will inform and consult with all employees who 
might be affected by the transfer. We will work with the new provider to understand in 
more detail what measures they are proposing, and the full impact on the workforce. 
If the new provider (Transferee) is proposing measures and/or changes to the overall 
numbers or functions of the workforce then we will work with the Transferee to 
conduct thorough pre-transfer consultation.

Further details about workforce impact will become clear once future operating 
models are clearer. 

Continued engagement with the workforce is key on the next steps and all statutory 
requirements regarding consultation will be followed.  

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED:

CONTACT OFFICER: Rebecca Bibby TEL NO: 0161 778 0318

WARDS TO WHICH REPORT RELATES: All 

Page 16


	Agenda
	4a Local Authority Day Nurseries consultation

